

**PROPOSED REGULATION OF
THE PERSONNEL COMMISSION**

LCB File No. R025-13

July 29, 2013

EXPLANATION – Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets ~~omitted material~~ is material to be omitted.

AUTHORITY: §1, NRS 284.065, 284.155 and 284.250.

A REGULATION relating to state personnel; revising provisions governing eligibility lists for state employment; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Section 1. NAC 284.361 is hereby amended to read as follows:

284.361 When using lists of persons who are eligible and considering eligible persons who have been certified, the following conditions apply:

1. When a reemployment list is certified:

(a) Eligible persons who are available for appointment and who are certified on reemployment lists, other than seasonal reemployment lists, must be hired in the order in which they appear unless the appointing authority, upon submitting written justification, obtains the written concurrence of the Governor to deviate from the order of priority or to hire from another list. The appointing authority must make the written justification available for examination by affected persons or their designated representatives.

(b) A person must accept or refuse an offer of reemployment:

(1) If the offer of reemployment is sent by mail to the person, within 6 calendar days after the postmarked date appearing on the envelope in which the offer was mailed; or

(2) If the offer is an oral offer of reemployment, within 3 business days after the oral offer has been made.

2. The appointing authority may request selective certification for a particular position if the normal method of certification does not provide candidates qualified to perform the duties of the position satisfactorily. Where selective certification is necessary, the appointing authority shall furnish in writing the special requirements peculiar to the position and his or her reasons therefor. If the facts and reasons justify such a method of selection, the Division of Human Resource Management may certify the highest ranking eligible persons who possess the special qualifications.

3. Certification of only eligible persons who are the same sex will not be made unless there is clear evidence that the duties assigned could be performed efficiently only by the sex specified.

4. When using ranked lists other than those for reemployment, the appointing authority shall attempt to communicate, as provided in NAC 284.373, with *at least 5* persons in the first ~~five~~ *10* ranks to determine their availability and qualifications. The names on each type of list must be considered before names from the next succeeding list. If there are fewer than ~~five~~ *10* ranks with persons who are available for appointment on a given list and the appointing authority requests a full complement of ~~five~~ *10* ranks, the name or names at the top of the next succeeding list must be combined with those on the preceding list to establish ~~five~~ *10* eligible ranks with persons who are available for appointment. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 6, all competitive appointments from ranked lists must be made from the persons who:

(a) Are in a rank of persons who received the ~~five~~ 10 highest scores on the examination;
and

(b) Are available for appointment.

5. If the list is unranked or waived, the appointing authority shall attempt to communicate, as provided in NAC 284.373, with at least five eligible persons he or she deems most qualified based upon a review of their respective qualifications as they relate to the position or class, or with all of the eligible persons if there are five or less. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 1, any eligible person who is certified from an unranked or waived list may be appointed.

6. If persons from fewer than five ranks of eligible persons are willing to accept appointment:

(a) The appointing authority may make an appointment from among those remaining available eligible persons.

(b) Certification and appointment may be made from other appropriate lists, including lists of higher grades as determined by the Division of Human Resource Management. The names from other lists will follow those which have been certified, if any, from the original lists.

(c) A new recruitment may be conducted.

(d) A provisional appointment may be made only if the requirements of NAC 284.406 are met.